
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
Board of Directors 
 
Friday, November 3, 2017 
Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 
Kent County Commission Chambers 
300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 
 
1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock  
 
2. Minutes of October 6, 2017        Action 
 
3. Committee Reports 
  
 A. Operations Committee 
  i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 
   
 B. Finance Committee 
  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 
   September 30, 2017 
  ii. SMG September 2017 Financial Statements –    Information 
   Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® 
  iii. First Quarter Capital Roll Update     Information 
  iv. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting    Information 
 
4. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars         Rich MacKeigan 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
6. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, December 1, 2017 
Joint Board and Committee Meeting 

Van Andel Arena® 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Friday, October 6, 2017 

 
 

Attendance  
  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 
   Rosalynn Bliss 
   Lew Chamberlin 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Floyd Wilson, Jr. 
 
Members Absent: Birgit Klohs 
   Richard Winn 
    

 Staff/Others:  Kathy Bart   SMG 
    Tom Bennett   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 
    Chris Machuta   SMG 
    Rich MacKeigan  SMG 
    Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Scott Smith   Dickinson Wright 
    Greg Sundstrom  Grand Rapids 
    Eddie Tadlock   SMG 
    Brad Thomas    Progressive AE 
    John Van Houten  Progressive AE 
    Susan Waddell   CAA 
    Jana Wallace   Grand Rapids 
      
1. Call to Order  
 
Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:20 a.m.  Susan Waddell recorded the 
meeting minutes in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer, Richard Winn.  Chair Heacock moved item #7 to 
the top of the agenda.   
 
2. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of an Easement to the  
 City of Grand Rapids 
 
Mr. MacKeigan recommended approval of the Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 
Easement to the City of Grand Rapids. The City of Grand Rapids has undertaken Grand River projects to 
restore the rapids, improve wildlife habitat, improve public access, enhance public overlooks, increase the level 
of flood protection, and increase recreational opportunities.  To accomplish these projects, the City needs to 
acquire an easement over the DeVos Place® property to provide for pedestrian access, life cycle repairs or 
improvements of the flood protection system, flood control, and rights to make improvements in the Grand 
River. 
 
Mr. MacKeigan has spoken with representatives of the City, Attorney Richard Wendt, and the attorney 
with Dickinson Wright who is representing the City, and they have confirmed that this easement will have 
no impact on the facility’s operation.  The easement will not affect the CAA’s use of the convention 
center, including all outdoor areas, in the same manner as they have been used in the past or are intended 
to be used in the future.   
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
October 6, 2017 – 2 
 
Mayor Bliss added that this project is critical for restoring the rapids. 
 
Motion by Mr. Chamberlin, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve the Resolution Approving and Authorizing 
Execution of an Easement to the City of Grand Rapids.  Motion carried. 
 
3. Minutes of Prior Meeting 
 
Motion by Mr. Wilson, support by Mr. Secchia, to approve the August 4, 2017, Minutes.  Motion carried. 
 
4. Amend Minutes of June 21, 2017 
 
Motion by Mr. Wilson, support by Mr. Chamberlin, to approve the June 21, 2017, Amended Minutes.  
Motion carried. 
 
5. Committee Reports 
 

A. Operations Committee 
 
  i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 
 
Mr. Bennett acknowledged James Gill, of Gerald R. Ford International Airport, and Sheriff Stelma for 
working to bring national conventions to town.  
 
 B. Finance Committee 
 
  i. Acceptance of August 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Mr. Machuta presented the consolidated financial report for the period ended August 31, 2017.  The 
dashboard showed that 2 concerts generated $127,683 in event revenue, a decrease of (81.8%) from prior 
year (6 concerts) of $702,417.  DeVos Place® convention/trade show business generated $589,703 in 
event revenue, an increase of +63.6%) from prior year (attendance increased from 24,285 to 36,141) of 
$360,414.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Ms. Bliss, moved to accept the August 2017 Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  Motion carried. 

 
  iii. SMG August 2017 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®  
   Financial Statements 
 
The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   
 
6. Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License   
 
Staff requested approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for special 
liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food Festival that will be held 
November 16-18, 2017.   
 
Motion by Ms. Bliss, support by Mr. Secchia, to approve an application to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for special liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food Festival.  
Motion carried. 
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
October 6, 2017 – 3 
 
 
7. Director & Officer Insurance Renewal 
 
Staff requested renewal of the director and officer liability insurance with insurer Michigan Municipal 
Risk Management Authority (MMRMA): 
 
2016-17 Expiring premium: $17,804 
2017-18 Renewal premium: $17,265 
Total Change   - $  539 
% Change (+ -)   -3.0% 
 
Motion by Ms. Bliss, support by Mr. Secchia, to approve renewal of the director and officer liability 
insurance.  Motion carried.   
 
8. Results of SMG Survey 
 
Chair Heacock stated the survey resulted in very high praise for SMG and especially for Rich MacKeigan 
and staff.  The survey was sent to 48 individuals, including Board members, committees, and vendors.  
Five of seven CAA Board members responded and were very consistent in their answers.  Two-thirds of 
the results from the CIG included comments on diversity.  All respondents concurred to renew the 
management agreement with SMG.  
 
9.  SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 
 
Mr. MacKeigan provided a summary of upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the Van 
Andel Arena®.    The Griffins home opener is tonight and they play tomorrow, as well. 
 
10. Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
11. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:35 a.m.   
 

    
     ______________________________________   

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility
Rolling Forecast 2
Year-to-Date Comparable 3
Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Proceeds - FY17 & FY18 4
Rolling 12-Month Comparison - FY17 & FY18 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts
Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report
September 30, 2017



-1-

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 11                 13                 12                   8                     4                    4                             
Attendance 73,744          51,500          48,734            68,119            32,000           33,941                    
Event Income 985,091$      480,930$      452,220$        902,152$        343,160$       353,341$                

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 81                 88                 114                 33                   30                  54                           
Attendance 61,350          78,900          78,180            28,810            30,000           41,241                    
Event Income 871,614$      1,123,826$   1,198,664$     427,969$        571,500$       681,542$                

Prior Year Budget Actual
Operating Income (Loss) (7,803)$           (363,253)$      (273,967)$               
Capital/Repair/Replacement (699,382)         (886,651)        (929,310)                 
Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (707,185)$       (1,249,904)$   (1,203,277)$            (1)

*NOTES: (1):
      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2017* 23,411,454$   

*Subject to Audit

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard
Year-To-Date (3 Months)

September 30, 2017

DeVos Place®



-2-

FY 2017
7/1 - 9/30

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate* Budget Prior Year
Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 1,002,873$      4,880,205$    5,883,078$    5,862,420$      7,215,161$        
                    - Expenses - Facilities (1,074,661)       (3,343,063)     (4,417,724)     (4,417,724)       (4,384,253)         
                               - Base Management Fees (58,813)            (118,321)        (177,134)        (177,134)          (173,661)            
                               - Incentive Fee -                       (97,631)          (97,631)          (101,780)          (178,902)            
   Net Operating Income (Loss) (130,601)          1,321,190      1,190,589      1,165,782        2,478,345          
   Parking 85,875             299,112         384,987         384,987           314,180             
   Pedestrian Safety (3,354)              (104,646)        (108,000)        (108,000)          (106,657)            
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA (48,080)            1,515,656      1,467,576      1,442,769        2,685,868          

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 1,207,405        5,259,161      6,466,566      6,337,310        6,491,239          
                   - Expenses - Facilities (1,582,536)       (4,396,912)     (5,979,448)     (5,979,448)       (6,016,985)         
                              - Base Management Fees (44,110)            (133,024)        (177,134)        (177,134)          (173,661)            
                              - Incentive Fee -                       (255,249)        (255,249)        (252,488)          (168,420)            
   Net Operating Income (Loss) (419,241)          473,976         54,735           (71,760)            132,173             
   Parking 243,131           900,635         1,143,766      1,143,766        1,221,140          
   Pedestrian Safety (3,099)              (47,901)          (51,000)          (51,000)            (56,179)              
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (179,209)          1,326,710      1,147,501      1,021,006        1,297,134          

Other
   Revenues 59,296             311,954         371,250         371,250           266,360             
   Expenses (105,974)          (822,899)        (928,873)        (928,873)          (708,397)            
     Net Other (46,678)            (510,945)        (557,623)        (557,623)          (442,037)            

Total Net Proceeds/Operating (273,967)          2,331,421      2,057,454      1,906,152        3,540,965          

Capital Expenditures (929,310)          (2,998,349)     (3,927,659)     (3,885,000)       (2,359,728)         
Results Net of Capital Expenditures (1,203,277)$     (666,928)$      (1,870,205)$   (1,978,848)$     1,181,237$        

*Updated estimate will be based on quarterly performance and projections for balance of year.  Next 
quarterly update to be provided with December financial report (1/5/18 Board meeting).

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

FY 2018



-3-

Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1 - 9/30 7/1 - 9/30 Change

Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 7,215,161$        5,862,420$        (18.7) $1,653,419 1,002,873$      (39.3)
                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,384,253)         (4,417,724)         (0.8) (1,081,975)       (1,074,661)      0.7
                               - Base Management Fees (173,661)            (177,134)            (2.0) (43,415)            (58,813)           (35.5)            
                               - Incentive Fee (178,902)            (101,780)            43.1             -                       -                      -                 
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 2,478,345          1,165,782          - (53.0)            528,029           (130,601)         (124.7)
   Parking 314,180             384,987             22.5 31,768             85,875             170.3           
   Pedestrian Safety (106,657)            (108,000)            (1.3) (10,310)            (3,354)             (67.5)            
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 2,685,868          1,442,769          (53.7) 549,487           (48,080)           (108.7)

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 6,491,239          6,337,310          (2.4)              880,674           1,207,405        37.1
                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,016,985)         (5,979,448)         0.6 (1,377,339)       (1,582,536)      (14.9)
                              - Base Management Fees (173,661)            (177,134)            (2.0) (43,415)            (44,110)           (1.6)              
                              - Incentive Fee (168,420)            (252,488)            (49.9)            -                       -                      -                 
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 132,173             (71,760)              (154.3) (540,080)          (419,241)         22.4
   Parking 1,221,140          1,143,766          (6.3) 117,853           243,131           106.3
   Pedestrian Safety (56,179)              (51,000)              9.2               (1,942)              (3,099)             (59.6)            
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,297,134          1,021,006          (21.3) (424,169)          (179,209)         57.9

Other
   Revenues 266,360             371,250             39.4 43,605             59,296             36.0             
   Expenses (708,397)            (928,873)            (31.1) (176,726)          (105,974)         40.0
     Net Other (442,037)            (557,623)            (26.1)            (133,121)          (46,678)           65.0

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 3,540,965          1,906,152          (46.2)            (7,803)              (273,967)         (3,511.0)       

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,359,728)         (3,885,000)         (64.6) (699,382)          (929,310)         (32.9)
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 1,181,237$        (1,978,848)$       (267.5)          (707,185)$        (1,203,277)$    (70.2)            

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2018



-4-



-5-



-6-

Van Andel Arena®
•      Page 1 - Four concerts generated $353,341 in event revenue, a decrease of (60.8%) from

prior year (8 concerts) of $902,152.
•        Page 3 - Net proceeds of ($48,080) decreased by (108.7%) from prior year of $549,487.

DeVos Place®
•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $681,542 in event revenue, an

increase of +59.4% from prior year (attendance increased from 28,810 to 41,241) of $427,649.
•        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of ($179,209) increased by +57.8% from prior year "proceeds"

of ($424,169).

Significant Notes



-7-

FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-9/30 7/1/-9/30 Change

Other
Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 176,908$     286,250$     61.8             37,349$           55,640$       49.0             
Miscellaneous 89,452         85,000         (5.0)              6,256               3,656           (41.6)            

266,360       - 371,250       39.4             43,605             59,296         36.0             
Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 125,000       200,000       60.0             50,000             -                   (100.0)          
Diversity Initiative 68,077         150,000       120.3           7,879               11,580         47.0             
Wages/Benefits 129,780       131,468       1.3               21,342             23,715         11.1             
Professional Services 61,715         65,500         6.1               27,117             1,747           (93.6)            
DID Assessment 38,405         55,422         44.3             38,405             40,254         4.8               
Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      -                   -                 
Consulting Services 117,709       150,000       (1) 27.4             5,056               8,143           61.1             
Landscaping 14,001         25,000         78.6             -                      4,275           +100.0
Procurement of Art 28,941         30,000         3.7               1,542               6,056           292.7           
Insurance 17,238         21,483         24.6             22,496             7,819           (65.2)            
Supplies/Other 107,531       60,000         (44.2)            2,889               2,385           (17.4)            

708,397 928,873       31.1             176,726           105,974       (40.0)            

Net Proceeds - Operating (442,037)$    (557,623)$    (26.1)            (133,121)$       (46,678)$      64.9             
Notes:

(1) Includes SMG $33,355 and $116,645 for hotel study.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

September 30, 2017



































Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Van Andel Arena/DeVos Place

Capital Budget 2018
jhorton 10/20/2017

ROLLING FORCAST AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Actual Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated (Over)Under

Item # Project Budget 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter Total 2018 Budget

CARRYOVER

-$                     -$                  

-$                     -$                  

VAN ANDEL ARENA

6200.01 Arc Flash Hazard Analysis 75,000.00$           75,000.00$       75,000.00$          -$                  

6200.02 Compressor Rebuilds (4) 140,000.00$         113,325.59$       113,325.59$        26,674.41$       

6200.03 Folding Chairs (replace 300 chairs) 60,000.00$           48,264.00$         48,264.00$          11,736.00$       

6200.04 Elevator Modernization Program 250,000.00$         45,085.00$         100,000.00$     100,000.00$     245,085.00$        4,915.00$         

6200.05 Locker Room Refurbish Study 40,000.00$           40,000.00$    40,000.00$          -$                  

6200.06 Concession Equipment 40,000.00$           35,008.86$         35,008.86$          4,991.14$         

6200.07 Ice Making Machines 70,000.00$           60,089.41$         60,089.41$          9,910.59$         

6200.08 Basketball Floor Demo 100,000.00$         107,261.00$     107,261.00$        (7,261.00)$        

6200.09 Dashers 230,000.00$         380,293.80$       380,293.80$        (150,293.80)$    

DE VOS PLACE

6200.1 Phase 3 Security System Camera Upgrades 125,000.00$         100,000.00$     25,000.00$       125,000.00$        -$                  

6200.11 Removal/Replace Flooring in DVPH Locker Room/Sound Booth150,000.00$         100,000.00$     50,000.00$       150,000.00$        -$                  

6200.12 Recycling Containers 125,000.00$         125,000.00$     125,000.00$        -$                  

6200.13 DVPH Hearing Loop Upgrades 35,000.00$           12,792.00$         12,792.00$       25,584.00$          9,416.00$         

6200.14 Landscaping Trees 130,000.00$         100,000.00$     30,000.00$       130,000.00$        -$                  

6200.15 Arc Flash Hazard Analysis 125,000.00$         125,000.00$     125,000.00$        -$                  

6200.16 Phase 1 of VFD Drive Replacements 125,000.00$         62,500.00$       62,500.00$       125,000.00$        -$                  

6200.17 DVPH VIP Area 450,000.00$         200,000.00$     250,000.00$  450,000.00$        -$                  

6200.18 New Meters for Subs 50,000.00$           50,000.00$       50,000.00$          -$                  

6200.19 New Michigan Street Dock Door 1,000,000.00$      500,000.00$     500,000.00$  1,000,000.00$     -$                  

6200.2 Replace Radios 75,000.00$           1,145.00$           55,481.70$       56,626.70$          18,373.30$       

6200.21 Door Redesign for GG 50,000.00$           50,000.00$       50,000.00$          -$                  

6200.22 Welsh Lobby Exterior 125,000.00$         100,000.00$     100,000.00$        25,000.00$       

6200.23 DVPH Stage Lighting 165,000.00$         56,928.43$         112,412.86$     169,341.29$        (4,341.29)$        

6200.24 Secchia Lobby Window Treatments 150,000.00$         70,890.00$         70,890.00$       141,780.00$        8,220.00$         

TOTALS 3,885,000.00$      823,822.09$       1,146,337.56$  1,167,500.00$  790,000.00$  3,927,659.65$     (42,659.65)$      






	Agenda.CAA
	Board of Directors
	Friday, November 3, 2017
	1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock
	2. Minutes of October 6, 2017        Action


	October.2017
	Friday, October 6, 2017
	Attendance
	i. Acceptance of August 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements


	September 2017
	Cover Sheet
	Dashboard
	Roll
	Consolidated Statement
	Monthly Net Proceeds
	Rolling 12 Months
	Significant Notes
	Administrative Accounts

	SMG Financial Statement.September 2017
	SMG First Quarter Roll
	Memo - Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting2

